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Dear Sir/ Madam
 
FOR THE ATTENTION OF THE MANSTON AIRPORT CASE TEAM
 
Thank you for your letter of 21 October 2021 regarding the Re-determination of the
above application by RiverOak Strategic Partners Limited for an Order granting
Development Consent for the upgrade and reopening of Manston Airport.
 
Our client, Network Rail Infrastructure Limited, submitted Written Representations to the
original application, on grounds that the Protective Provisions in the draft Development
Consent Order were not adequate to protect Network Rail’s role as the statutory
undertaker responsible for maintaining and operating the national rail network.  Network
Rail’s position remains as set out in the Written Representations to the original
application, a copy of which is attached for ease of reference.
 
Kind regards
 
Juliet  
Juliet Clark
Principal Associate
Parliamentary and Infrastructure Consenting
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From: Craven, Jessica 
Sent: 01 July 2021 16:00
To: manstonairport@planninginspectorate.gov.uk

 

Subject: Re-determination of the Manston Airport DCO- Network Rail's further representation
 
 
For the attention of the Manston Airport Case Team
 
We are instructed by Network Rail Infrastructure Limited (“Network Rail”) in relation to
the development consent application made by RiverOak Strategic Partners Ltd (“the
Promoter”) for the upgrade and reopening of Manston Airport (“the DCO Scheme”). This
representation is made on behalf of Network Rail following the invitation from the
Department of Transport to provide any further material that the Secretary of State
should take into account in the re-determination of the DCO application.
 
As detailed in Network Rail’s previous representations and responses to the ExA (copies
of which are attached for ease of reference), as the statutory undertaker responsible for
maintaining and operating the national rail network, Network Rail detailed in its section
56 Representation objection (see link below) to certain works and land acquisition
powers proposed for this DCO scheme which, if consented without satisfactory
protections for Network Rail, would materially prejudice Network Rail’s ability to comply
with its statutory and regulatory obligations to operate a safe, efficient and economical
national rail network. Section 56 representation-
https://infrastructure.planninginspectorate.gov.uk/projects/south-east/manston-
airport/?ipcsection=relreps&ipcsearch=eversheds&ipcpagesize=10&relrep=29344
 
 
Current negotiations with the Promoter
 
Network Rail had been in discussions with the Promoter for the inclusion of full and
proper Protective Provisions for Network Rail in the draft Order together with the
settlement of a framework agreement, the required asset protection agreement and
necessary property agreement so to properly and fully protect Network Rail’s statutory
undertaking. Despite Network Rail’s best endeavours, these protections, including the
terms of Protective Provisions which have been widely incorporated in other
Development Consent Orders, were not agreed by the close of the examination period.
 
Please refer to our correspondence from January 2020 (see attached) which sets out the
status of negotiations with the Promoter on the asset protection agreement, easement
(including required indemnity), Protective Provisions and Framework Agreement. Despite
Network Rail’s attempts, there has been no updates or progress on these required
protections from the status detailed in the January correspondence.
 
 
Re-determination of the Order



 
Network Rail were disappointed to see that the made Order did not include the full and
proper Protective Provisions (please refer to our correspondence from January 2020 for
a set of the provisions Network Rail wish to include) that had been shared with the
Examining Authority and had been discussed with the Promoter.
 
The Secretary Of State in his decision letter stated “..that the rights can be acquired
without any serious detriment to the carrying out of Network Rail’s undertaking and is
content with the Protective Provisions recommended by the ExA to be included in the
DCO.” Network Rail politely disagrees with this conclusion. In the absence of the proper
protections noted above, and in particular the inclusion of full and proper Protective
Provisions for Network Rail in the Order, the compulsorily acquisition powers granted by
the Order would create a serious detriment to the continued safe, efficient and economic
operation of the railway.
 
To include such compulsory acquisition powers in the Order would allow the Promoter to
enter into Network Rail’s operational land and use the subsoil under the railway which
could have huge safety implications should the subsoil be effected by the works. In
addition these powers would effectively exclude Network Rail from its subsoil under its
railway and Network Rail would therefore be unable to address any issues at this
location, which again could lead to Network Rail being unable to fulfil its statutory
function and to protect the safety and continued operation of the railway.
 
Network Rail therefore suggests that the Secretary of State has not fully appreciated the
effects of such compulsory acquisition would have upon Network Rail. As previously
stated in Network Rail’s section 56 representation, Network Rail would expect the
necessary subsoil rights or other rights to be acquired through an agreed easement
rather than through the exercise of compulsory acquisition powers in order to ensure
such rights do not affect the continued use of the railway by train and freight operators.
Network Rail therefore requests the Promoter engages with Network Rail as soon as
possible to seek to continue discussions to agree the necessary rights required.
 
It appears to Network Rail that the solution to satisfy both parties is to remove
compulsory acquisition powers from the Order by including the provisions Network Rail
requires. The protections have been widely incorporated in other DCOs as set out in our
correspondence from January 2020. The Promoter can enter into an easement with
Network Rail in order to facilitate the Promoter’s requirements in order to constructed
the proposed scheme. Network Rail is ready and willing to continue negotiations with the
Promoter on settling the terms of the easement.
 
In conclusion, Network Rail have provided the Promoter with various solutions in the
protections suggested which would both enable the Promoter to facilitate the
development granted by the Order whilst also protecting Network Rail’s interests so it
may comply with its statutory and regulatory obligations. Network Rail believes that the
Protection Provisions it requires can be included within the re-determined Order (if
subsequently made), whilst providing the Promoter with the powers it requires. Network
is grateful for the opportunity to provide additional comments for the Secretary of State
to consider in its re-determination of the Order.
 
Network Rail’s previous submissions attached:
 

Section 56 Representation –October 2018 (see link above)
 

Responses to ExA’s questions- February 2019
 

Responses to ExA’s questions- June 2019
 



Further correspondence- January 2020
 
 

I would be grateful if you can acknowledge receipt.
 
Kind regards
 
Jessica
 
 
 
Jessica Craven | Senior Associate | Parliamentary & Infrastructure Consenting | Eversheds Sutherland

Eversheds Sutherland
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sutherland.com 

 

 
BY EMAIL TO - ManstonAirport@planninginspectorate.gov.uk 
 
Dear Sir/Madam 
 
Proposed Manston Airport Development Consent Order 
Network Rail’s Responses to the Examining Authority’s Fourth Written Questions 

(ExQ4)  

I write to you on behalf of Network Rail Infrastructure Limited (“Network Rail”) in order to 
respond to the Examining Authority’s Fourth Written Questions ahead of Deadline 9 on 28th 
June 2019.  

Question CA.4.23 has been directed to both the Applicant and Network Rail. 

Question CA.4.23 

As the statutory undertaker responsible for maintaining and operating the national rail 
network, Network Rail detailed in its section 56 Representation objections to certain works and 
land acquisition powers proposed for this DCO scheme which, if consented without satisfactory 
protections for Network Rail, would materially prejudice Network Rail’s ability to comply with 
its statutory and regulatory obligations to operate a safe, efficient and economical national rail 
network. 

As noted in your question and the Statement of Common Ground between Network Rail and 

the Applicant, Network Rail has been in discussions with the Applicant for the inclusion of full 
and proper Protective Provisions for Network Rail in the draft Order together with the 
settlement of a framework agreement, the required asset protection agreement and necessary 
property agreement so to properly and fully protect Network Rail’s statutory undertaking.  
These protections, including the terms of Protective Provisions which have been widely 
incorporated in other Development Consent Orders, have yet to be agreed to Network Rail’s 

satisfaction as of the date of this letter. 

In the absence of the proper protections, and in particular the inclusion of full and proper 
Protective Provisions for Network Rail in the Order, being agreed to Network Rail’s satisfaction 
the Order and the compulsorily acquisition powers sought by the Applicant would create a 
serious detriment to the continued safe, efficient and economic operation of the railway.  In 
such circumstances Network Rail would be unable to withdraw its representation and would 
continue its objection to the proposals. 
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Network Rail has made the Applicant aware of its concerns and requirements and its wish to 

continue to seek agreement on the protections sought by Network Rail in a form that is well 
precedented and acceptable to Network Rail before the close of the examination. 

Yours sincerely 

James O’Connor 
Partner for 
Eversheds Sutherland (International) LLP 
 

 






























